
REGULAR MEETING 
PLAN COMMISSION/ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

OCTOBER 4, 2021 - 7:00PM 
VILLAGE HALL - BOARD ROOM 

The Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals hears requests for zoning text amendments, rezoning, special uses, 
and variations and forwards recommendations to the Board of Trustees. The Commission also reviews all proposals 
to subdivide property and is charged with Village planning, including the updating of the Comprehensive Plan for 
Land Use. All Plan Commission actions are advisory and are submitted to the Board of Trustees for final action.  

 
I. ROLL CALL 
 
 
II. APPROVAL OF SEPTEMBER 20, 2021 MEETING MINUTES 
 
 
III. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

A. V-04-2021: 6100 Grant Street (Toland); Variation and Findings of Fact; continued from 
August 2, 2021 

 
 Requests a variation from Section VI.F.4 of the Zoning Ordinance to permit a single-family 

residence to be built with a Floor Area Ratio in excess of 20%. 
 
B. Z-08-2021: 50-124 and 200-324 Burr Ridge Parkway (Village of Burr Ridge); Planned 

Unit Development and Findings of Fact; continued from July 19, 2021 and August 16, 2021 
 
 Requests a Planned Unit Development as per Section VIII.B.2.cc of the Zoning Ordinance for the 

purpose of creating parking and land use regulations at the subject property. 
 

IV. CORRESPONDENCE  
 
 A. September 27, 2021 – Board Report 
 
V. OTHER CONSIDERATIONS 
 

A.  PC-04-2021:  6100 Grant Street; Preliminary Plat of Subdivision (Bak)  
  

VI. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



October 4, 2021 
Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals 

 
VII. FUTURE MEETINGS 
 
 October 11, 2021 Board of Trustees 

 
Chairman Trzupek is the scheduled Plan Commission representative.  
 
October 18, 2021 Plan Commission 
 
No business is currently scheduled for this meeting. If no business is scheduled by the conclusion of the 
October 4 Plan Commission, staff recommends this meeting be cancelled. 
 
October 25, 2021 Board of Trustees 
 
Commissioner Broline is the scheduled Plan Commission representative.  
 
November 1, 2021 
 
A. Z-12-2021: Downtown Business District (Village of Burr Ridge); Land Use Moratorium 
 

Requests a moratorium on all new and significant alteration of development and land usage 
applicable within the Downtown Business District.  

 
VIII.  ADJOURNMENT 



VILLAGE OF BURR RIDGE PLAN COMMISSION/ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS  
MINUTES FOR REGULAR MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 20, 2021 

 
I.  ROLL CALL 
 
The meeting of the Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals was called to order at 7:00 p.m. at 
the Burr Ridge Village Hall, 7660 County Line Road, Burr Ridge, Illinois by Chairman Trzupek.  
 
ROLL CALL was noted as follows:   
 
PRESENT: 5 – Broline, Petrich, Parella, Farrell, and Trzupek 
ABSENT: 2 – Stratis and Irwin 
 
Interim Village Administrator Evan Walter was also present.   
 
II. APPROVAL OF PRIOR MEETING MINUTES 
 
Commissioner Broline asked for further elaboration on his comments regarding parking 
regulations at County Line Square.  
 
A MOTION was made by Commissioner Farrell and SECONDED by Commissioner Broline to 
approve the amended minutes of the September 20, 2021 Plan Commission meeting.   
 
ROLL CALL VOTE was as follows:   
 
AYES:  4 – Farrell, Broline, Petrich, and Parella 
NAYS: 0 – None  
ABSTAIN: 1 – Trzupek  
 
MOTION CARRIED by a vote of 4-0. 
 
III. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
Chairman Trzupek conducted the swearing in of all those wishing to speak during the public 
hearings on the agenda for the meeting.  
 
V-04-2021: 6100 Grant Street (Toland); Variation and Findings of Fact; continued from 
August 2, 2021 
 
Interim Village Administrator Walter said that the petitioner requested a continuance of the 
petition to October 4, 2021 to allow for further time to finalize the plans for the prospective house. 
 
A MOTION was made by Commissioner Irwin and SECONDED by Commissioner Petrich to 
continue the public hearing for V-04-2021 to October 4, 2021. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE was as follows:   



Plan Commission/Zoning Board Minutes 
September 20, 2021 Regular Meeting 

 
AYES:  5 – Farrell, Broline, Petrich, Parrella, and Trzupek 
NAYS: 0 – None  
MOTION CARRIED by a vote of 6-0.  
 
Z-11-2021: Zoning Ordinance Amendments (Village of Burr Ridge); Text Amendments and 
Findings of Fact; continued from August 2, 2021 and August 16, 2021 
 
Mr. Walter said that the petition had been continued from August 2, 2021 and August 16, 2021. 
Mr. Walter said at the previous public hearings, a revised noise standard entitled “Excessively 
Audible” was discussed. Staff has revised the initial amendments to align with the feedback of the 
Plan Commission, including incorporating a property line mechanism for measurement purposes, 
several additional exceptions to the rule added, as well as a staff-monitored special event permit 
which could be obtained once every six months by property owners.  
 
Chairman Trzupek asked for public comment. No public comment was given. 
 
Chairman Trzupek asked what the determination of Excessively Audible would be. Mr. Walter 
stated that the most salient revision to the previous discussions was to consolidate the pertinent 
regulation related to noise standards to the following: “no person may cause or allow the emission 
of sound from any property in such a manner so as to cause Noise Pollution which is Excessively 
Audible with a determination taken from the property line on the property on which the noise is 
received.”  
 
Commissioners Farrell, Broline, and Parrella supported the final revisions as presented. 
 
Commissioner Petrich suggested striking the word “also” from the draft language related to the 
exceptions for landscaping in the Municipal Code but otherwise supported the revisions. 
 
Chairman Trzupek supported the final revisions. 
 
Mark Thoma, 7515 Drew, asked how appeals to Circuit Court would be handled, specifically as 
to whose rules would be applicable in such a case. Mr. Walter said that the local rule would still 
apply.  
 
A MOTION was made by Commissioner Petrich and SECONDED by Commissioner Farrell to 
close the public hearing for Z-11-2021. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE was as follows:   
 
AYES:  5 – Petrich, Farrell, Broline, Parella, and Trzupek  
NAYS: 0 – None  
 
MOTION CARRIED by a vote of 5-0.  
 



Plan Commission/Zoning Board Minutes 
September 20, 2021 Regular Meeting 

A MOTION was made by Commissioner Broline and SECONDED by Commissioner Petrich to 
recommend that the Board approve a text amendment to Section IV.W of the Zoning Ordinance 
in its entirety subject to the language included in the staff report, except to strike the word “also” 
from Item C in the Exceptions standards. 
ROLL CALL VOTE was as follows:   
 
AYES:  5 – Broline, Petrich, Farrell, Parella, and Trzupek  
NAYS: 0 – None  
 
MOTION CARRIED by a vote of 5-0.  
 
Z-08-2021: 50-124 and 200-324 Burr Ridge Parkway (Village of Burr Ridge); Planned 
Unit Development and Findings of Fact; continued from July 19, 2021 
 
Mr. Walter said that the petition had been continued from July 19, 2021 and August 16, 2021. Mr. 
Walter said that several revisions had been made to the petition’s language, including the provision 
of a redlined copy of any changes made from standard B-1 Business District zoning. Mr. Walter 
said that the major revisions still outstanding were the revision of the parking standard from 1/250 
square feet to 1/200 square feet, the removal of the fire lane being replaced by a standing/loading 
lane, the inclusion of a standard 7:00am-10:00pm hours of operation rule, as well as other minor 
clarifications. Mr. Walter noted that under a PUD, all previously-approved special uses would 
remain in effect, and that the PUD would be enforced for any future development or uses. 
 
Chairman Trzupek asked how the parking chart would be used going forward if the PUD as shown 
were approved. Mr. Walter said that the chart would be void, as the Village would no longer track 
parking needs on an individual use basis.  
 
Alice Krampits, 7515 Drew, expressed concerns about the removal of the fire lane. Mr. Walter 
said that the removal of the fire lane has already been approved by Pleasantview Fire Protection 
District. Ms. Krampits expressed concerns about valet cars stacking in standing and loading areas 
if the entire lane were available for standing and loading purposes.  
 
Commissioner Parella asked if neon signs were permitted in the PUD. Mr. Walter said that visible 
neon was not permitted as proposed in the draft language.  
 
Commissioner Petrich asked if the additional spaces on Lincolnshire Drive would be part of the 
PUD. Mr. Walter said that they would not be part of a PUD, but wanted to include the matter for 
discussion since there was an opportunity to create more parking proximate to the subject property. 
Commissioner Petrich supported adding said spaces as part of a Plan recommendation. 
Commissioner Petrich deferred to the determination of the Fire District regarding the fire lane. 
Commissioner Petrich asked what the differences in sign regulations between the PUD and Village 
Center were as proposed. Mr. Walter said that some of the regulations at Village Center did not 
appear to fit at County Line Square, such as the requirement that all tenants have a blade sign. 
Commissioner Petrich expressed some concerns about outdoor dining becoming a permitted use. 
Commissioner Petrich asked if outdoor dining space would be included in the parking calculations. 
Mr. Walter said that outdoor space was currently not included in the parking calculations.  



Plan Commission/Zoning Board Minutes 
September 20, 2021 Regular Meeting 

 
Commissioner Farrell asked for clarification about the number of spaces. Mr. Walter said that there 
were closer to 500 parking spaces. Commissioner Farrell asked for better definition of 
parking/standing/loading areas while supporting the overall concept of fire lane amendments. 
Commissioner Farrell asked if the Village Center has permitted restaurants with alcohol. Mr. 
Walter said that such uses were permitted within the Entertainment District. Commissioner Farrell 
said that she would support outdoor dining being permitted if it were included in the overall size 
calculation of the restaurant.  
  
Chairman Trzupek supported the concept of including outdoor dining in both the overall square 
footage count as well as the individual restaurant size count. Chairman Trzupek expressed some 
reservation about valet cars being stacked in the standing/loading area as well as the loss of control 
over parking, as the PUD would generally concede that parking no longer be an issue requiring 
direct analysis on a use-by-use basis. 
 
A MOTION was made by Commissioner Petrich and SECONDED by Commissioner Farrell to 
continue the public hearing for Z-08-2021 to October 4, 2021. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE was as follows:   
 
AYES:  5 – Petrich, Farrell, Broline, and Parella, and Trzupek 
NAYS: 0 – None  
 
MOTION CARRIED by a vote of 5-0.  
 
IV.  CORRESPONDENCE  
 
A brief discussion was held regarding the July Building Report.  
 
V. OTHER PETITIONS 
 
VI. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
No public comment was given. 
 
VII. FUTURE MEETINGS 
 
Mr. Walter said that there were four considerations scheduled for the September 20, 2021 meeting.  
 
VII. ADJOURNMENT 
 
A MOTION was made by Commissioner Petrich and SECONDED by Commissioner Parella to 
adjourn the meeting at 7:55 pm. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE was as follows:   
 



Plan Commission/Zoning Board Minutes 
September 20, 2021 Regular Meeting 

AYES:  5 – Petrich, Parella, Broline, Farrell, and Trzupek 
NAYS: 0 – None 
 
MOTION CARRIED by a vote of 5-0. 
 
 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted:  

  

 Evan Walter – Village Administrator  
 



 
V-04-2021: 6100 Grant Street (Toland); Requests a variation from Section VI.F.4 of the Zoning 
Ordinance to permit a single-family residence to be built with a floor area ratio in excess of 20%. 

HEARING: 
October 4, 2021; continued from 
September 16, 2021 and August 
2, 2021 
 
TO: 
Plan Commission 
Greg Trzupek, Chairman 
 
FROM:  
Evan Walter 
Village Administrator 
 
PETITIONER:  
Judith Toland 
 
PETITIONER STATUS:  
Prospective Property Owner 
 
EXISTING ZONING:  
R-3 Residential 
 
LAND USE PLAN:  
Recommends Single-Family 
Residential Uses 
 
EXISTING LAND USE:  
Single-Family Residence 
 
SITE AREA:  
0.51 Acres 
 
SUBDIVISION:  
Grant Street  

 

 

 

 
 



Staff Report  
V-04-2021: 6100 Grant Street (Toland); Variation and Findings of Fact; continued from 
September 16, 2021 and August 2, 2021 
Page 2 of 3 

 
The petitioner is Judith Toland, prospective property owner of Lot 1 in the Grant Street 
Subdivision. At the time of the petitioner’s submittal to the Village, the Grant Street Subdivision 
had not been completed. On July 27, the property was successfully subdivided with a PIN of 09-
13-306-013 assigned to the new subject property to be addressed as 6061 Keller Drive. The 
petitioner is requesting a variation from Section VI.F.4 of the Zoning Ordinance to permit a single-
family residence to be built with a Floor Area Ratio (FAR) in excess of 20%. The petitioner states 
in their application that the water table on the subject property is demonstrably impactful on their 
property’s plans, requiring that the proposed home to be built be raised out of the ground with a 
shallower basement than is otherwise desired. The petitioner has submitted a proposed site, 
elevation, and floor plan of the home to be developed if the variation were granted. The home 
shows 4,799 square feet of applicable Floor Area, which would equate to a Floor Area Ratio of 
21.2% on the subject property, remaining above the standard 20% FAR threshold set for the R-3 
Residential District. The petitioner has previously stated that the additional FAR is identified in 
the need to relocate elements of the basement to an above-grade location due to a higher-than-
normal water table on the subject property.  
“Floor Area Ratio” is a measurement commonly found in zoning regulations to specify the bulk 
of a building on a property. Calculating the FAR of a building is determined by dividing the floor 
area by the gross land area of the lot. For example, a 30,000-square foot property zoned R-3 
Residential has an FAR regulation of 20%; in this example, a property owner would be legally 
permitted to build a home with a Floor Area of 6,000 square feet, as 6,000 divided by 30,000 is 
20%. The entire interior space of the home does not usually count towards the determination of 
the Floor Area of the home, and the square footage of the home does not necessarily equate to the 
Floor Area of the home. For example, certain areas of principal residential structures are exempt 
from FAR calculation, including the first 1,000 square feet of an attached garage, interior balconies 
and mezzanines (such as a stairways in a two-story space), enclosed porches, attic space with wall 
plates less than 54” tall, and basement space whose ceiling line is less than 54” above grade. In 
many houses in Burr Ridge, FAR is generally limited to the first and second floor space of the 
home. R-1 and R-2 Residential Districts have a Floor Area Ratio of 10% while R-2A, R-2B, and 
R-3 Residential Districts have a Floor Area Ratio of 20%. R-5 Residential has a Floor Area Ratio 
of 50%, but this zoning classification is intended for multi-family development, which is not 
comparable to this petition.  
The Plan Commission requested additional information to further consider the merits of the 
petition’s request for a variation. First, and in summary, this petition would meet the development 
standards of the Village but for the FAR calculation as well as several technical engineering 
comments, such as the presence of a retaining wall in a Public Utility and Drainage Easement that 
the Village would require to be relocated. There is sufficient space on the site as well as adequate 
grading for any remaining issues to be overcome in normal course. Any plans for a new home 
would be required to meet the remaining Village regulations before a building permit were issued. 
Second, staff has been unable to ascertain useful data regarding the proliferation of shallow water 
tables throughout the Village. Staff has not been able to identify any permits which included water 
table analyses in the past five years, nor are any regional analyses available for review. The 
petitioner submitted a report dated February 19, 2020 from a licensed soil testing company 
indicated that water bearing conditions were encountered at depths of 6’-10’ below existing grade, 
with an engineering recommendation that the maximum bottom of foundation be no more than 5’ 
below grade. While there is no presence of wetland or floodplain within the specific lot lines of 



Staff Report  
V-04-2021: 6100 Grant Street (Toland); Variation and Findings of Fact; continued from 
September 16, 2021 and August 2, 2021 
Page 3 of 3 

 
the subject property, both wetland and floodplain are located on adjacent properties, which may 
indicate the likelihood of rising sub-surface water tabling in the general area. Based upon limited 
information, a water table at this level is likely unusually high in the Village.  

Public Hearing History 
No other petitions have been submitted related to the subject property.  

Public Comment 
Staff has received five objections from property owners within the 1000’ public hearing notice 
radius, all noting the preponderance of additional flooding concerns due to a larger-than-permitted 
home being potentially allowed. A number of other inquiries were received with no position taken 
except to obtain additional information.  

Findings of Fact and Recommendation 
The petitioner has provided findings of fact, which the Plan Commission may adopt if in agreement 
with those findings. If the Plan Commission wishes to recommend approval of a variation for a 
home with a Floor Area Ratio in excess of 20% at the subject property, staff recommends the 
following conditions: 

1. The variation shall be granted to 6061 Keller Drive, PIN #09-13-306-013.  
2. The maximum Floor Area Ratio permitted for the subject property shall be that which is 

present in the petitioner’s submitted site plans. 

Appendix 
Exhibit A – Petitioner’s Materials 



ewalter
Exhibit A















ewalter
Highlight



National Flood Hazard Layer FIRMette

0 500 1,000 1,500 2,000250
Feet

Ü

SEE FIS REPORT FOR DETAILED LEGEND AND INDEX MAP FOR FIRM PANEL LAYOUT

SPECIAL FLOOD
HAZARD AREAS

Without Base Flood Elevation (BFE)
Zone A, V, A99

With BFE or DepthZone AE, AO, AH, VE, AR

Regulatory Floodway

0.2% Annual Chance Flood Hazard, Areas
of 1% annual chance flood with average
depth less than one foot or with drainage
areas of less than one square mileZone X

Future Conditions 1% Annual
Chance Flood HazardZone X

Area with Reduced Flood Risk due to
Levee. See Notes.Zone X

Area with Flood Risk due to LeveeZone D

NO SCREENArea of Minimal Flood HazardZone X

Area of Undetermined Flood HazardZone D

Channel, Culvert, or Storm Sewer

Levee, Dike, or Floodwall

Cross Sections with 1% Annual Chance
17.5 Water Surface Elevation

Coastal Transect

Coastal Transect Baseline
Profile Baseline
Hydrographic Feature

Base Flood Elevation Line (BFE)

Effective LOMRs

Limit of Study
Jurisdiction Boundary

Digital Data Available

No Digital Data Available

Unmapped

This map complies with FEMA's standards for the use of
digital flood maps if it is not void as described below.
The basemap shown complies with FEMA's basemap
accuracy standards

The flood hazard information is derived directly from the
authoritative NFHL web services provided by FEMA. This map
was exported on 9/28/2021 at 5:04 PM  and does not
reflect changes or amendments subsequent to this date and
time. The NFHL and effective information may change or
become superseded by new data over time.

This map image is void if the one or more of the following map
elements do not appear: basemap imagery, flood zone labels,
legend, scale bar, map creation date, community identifiers,
FIRM panel number, and FIRM effective date. Map images for
unmapped and unmodernized areas cannot be used for
regulatory purposes.

Legend

OTHER AREAS OF
FLOOD HAZARD

OTHER AREAS

GENERAL
STRUCTURES

OTHER
FEATURES

MAP PANELS

8

B
20.2

The pin displayed on the map is an approximate
point selected by the user and does not represent
an authoritative property location.

1:6,000

87°56'14"W 41°46'54"N

87°55'36"W 41°46'27"N

Basemap: USGS National Map: Orthoimagery: Data refreshed October, 2020



  
Z-08-2021: 50-124 and 200-324 Burr Ridge Parkway (Village of Burr Ridge); Requests 
establishment of a Planned Unit Development as per Section VIII.B.2.cc of the Zoning Ordinance 
for the purpose of creating parking and land use regulations at the subject property. 

HEARING: 
October 4, 2021; continued from 
September 20, 2021, August 16, 
2021 and July 19, 2021 
 
TO: 
Plan Commission 
Greg Trzupek, Chairman 
 
FROM:  
Evan Walter 
Village Administrator 
 
PETITIONER: 
Village of Burr Ridge 
 
PROPERTY OWNER: 
Robert Garber d/b/a Reegs 
Properties 
 
EXISTING ZONING: 
B-1 Business District 
 
LAND USE PLAN: 
Recommends Commercial Uses 
 
EXISTING LAND USE: 
Commercial Buildings 
 
SITE AREA: 
7.2 Acres  
 
SUBDIVISION: 
County Line Square 
 
AVAILABLE PARKING: 
499 Total Spaces  
 

 
 

 



Staff Report and Summary 
Z-08-2021:  50-124 and 200-324 Burr Ridge Parkway (Village of Burr Ridge); PUD and Findings 
of Fact; continued from September 20, 2021, August 16, 2021 and July 19, 2021 
 
The petitioner is the Village of Burr Ridge in partnership with Bob Garber, owner of the subject 
property. On June 28, 2021, the Board of Trustees directed the Plan Commission to hold a public 
hearing at the subject property (hereinafter referred to as “County Line Square” or “CLS”) for the 
purposes of considering a Planned Unit Development to create local parking and land use 
regulations for the subject property. The Board found that several parking variances and special 
uses had been granted in succession at the subject property and has requested that the Plan 
Commission consider alternative approaches to regulating parking and land uses in light of these 
successive approvals.  
The petitioner requests establishment of a Planned Unit Development (PUD) as per Section 
VIII.B.2.cc of the Zoning Ordinance for the purpose of creating parking and land use regulations 
at the subject property. The intent of the PUD is to provide greater flexibility regarding the 
regulation of parking as well as evaluate and optimize land-use regulations for the purpose of 
creating an economically-healthy commercial property in downtown Burr Ridge. If a PUD is 
ultimately adopted, it would become the governing document regarding all zoning matters for the 
subject property; amendments to the PUD would be brought as public hearings. County Line 
Square contains a strip shopping center with approximately 90,000 total square feet of commercial 
space, including two outlot buildings (both under separate ownership).  

Land Use Analysis 
Staff and the property owner worked together to develop a revised list of permitted and special 
uses that would be applicable to the subject property under the PUD. Most notably, restaurants 
with or without sales of alcoholic beverages less than 4,000 square feet is proposed as a permitted 
use. All restaurants over 4,000 square feet, regardless of menu, would be required to obtain a 
special use. The largest current restaurant at County Line Square is Capri, coming in at just over 
5,000 total square feet, followed by Johnny Cab’s at 4,200 square feet. All outdoor dining space 
would also be included in the calculation of restaurant size. Similarly, “live entertainment and 
dancing” has been moved to a standalone special use, applicable as an accessory use to any 
permitted or special use.  
Signage regulations were also proposed for the subject property generally matching that of those 
approved at the Village Center. Tenants at County Line Square are currently restricted to a sign in 
one specific color (#313 – Duranodic Bronze) and of a certain size; these requirements were 
incorporated in 1988 upon original construction of the property.  
Finally, staff has included a basic hours of operation provision which would limit all future uses 
to a 7:00am-10:00pm regulation, with special uses being required for any desired operation outside 
of these hours.  

Parking Analysis 
The adoption of a shared parking calculation at one space per 200 square feet of gross square 
footage would create the legal basis so as to no longer require additional parking variations except 
if significant amounts of gross square footage were added to the property, which would require a 
PUD amendment regardless of the parking regulations in place. Under a 1/200 square feet rule, 
462 parking spaces would be required to be provided at the subject property if outdoor dining areas 
were included in the parking calculation as directed by previous Plan Commission discussion.  
Staff has included a clause in the draft PUD regulations which would require any restaurant use 
over 4,000 gross square feet to provide valet service from Thursday-Saturday. Additionally, the 
draft PUD would require that all employees at the property park in the rear of the building (as 



Staff Report and Summary 
Z-08-2021:  50-124 and 200-324 Burr Ridge Parkway (Village of Burr Ridge); PUD and Findings 
of Fact; continued from September 20, 2021, August 16, 2021 and July 19, 2021 
 
defined by Exhibit B) unless all parking spaces were taken in this defined area. There are 
approximately 85 parking spaces included in Exhibit B. Staff’s analysis of current business plans 
at the subject property indicates that this is generally sufficient for the employees who may be 
working at any point. Staff also recommends that the Plan Commission recommend that the Board 
consider the installation of additional on-street parking spaces along Lincolnshire Drive to further 
add parking capacity near the subject property. Staff estimates that approximately ten spaces could 
be added between Chasemoor Drive and Burr Ridge Parkway, and would be available to any 
downtown patron. These spaces could be limited to parking from 11:00am-midnight, thus 
eliminating the possibility of their being generally used by Pace riders.  
Finally, staff proposes that the curbline along the tenant space be a permitted 5-minute loading 
zone. Currently, the entire curbline is defined as a “no parking” zone; under this revision, 
temporary standing and loading would be permitted in yellow zones, but parking would remain 
prohibited. The curbline would remain yellow, with no parking/standing/loading areas painted red, 
and signed every 100 feet throughout the property.  

Findings of Fact and Recommendation 
The petitioner has provided findings of fact which may be adopted if the Plan Commission is in 
agreement with those findings. Staff recommends that the draft PUD regulations along with 
Exhibits A-C be adopted with any affirmative recommendation.  

Appendix 
Exhibit A – Petitioner’s Materials 



PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS RELATED TO THE  

SHOPPING CENTER AT 50-324 (EXCLUDING 150) BURR RIDGE PARKWAY 

The following regulations are intended to govern the current use, scope, as well as present and 
future conditions of the subject property at 50-324 (excluding 150) Burr Ridge Parkway, known 
at this time as “County Line Square Shopping Center”, as described in Exhibit A (Plat of Survey). 

Operation within Enclosed Buildings 

All business, service, storage, merchandise display, repair, and processing, where allowed, shall 
be conducted within a completely enclosed building, except as follows: 

a. Outdoor activities are permitted for uses which by definition require outdoor activities such as 
parking and loading areas, automobile service stations, or recreation areas for child care centers 
and nurseries.  

b. Outdoor activities listed as special uses may be approved by the Board of Trustees upon 
recommendation from the Plan Commission subject to the Zoning Ordinance. 

c. Temporary (less than or equal to 72 hours in total duration) outdoor activities may be permitted 
subject to written approval by the Village Administrator or their designee. Such activities shall 
not include any permanent improvements, buildings, or structures. Outdoor activities which 
may be permitted include festivals, tent sales, or seasonal sidewalk sales. 

Signs 

Building Signs located at the subject property are subject to the issuance of a sign permit by the 
Village. Building Signs are subject to the following regulations: 

a. Each tenant shall be permitted one Building Sign on the building façade.  
b. Each Building Sign shall not exceed one square foot for each lineal foot of the storefront or 

tenant space width with a minimum area allowed of 20 square feet and a maximum area 
allowed of 40 square feet. 

c. All tenants are permitted to affix Storefront/Window Signs, defined as any covering of the 
front window for advertisement purposes, without need for a sign permit and in adherence to 
the following regulations: 

1. The sum total of all Storefront Signs shall not exceed 30 percent of the total area of the 
windows in which they are located. 

2. Storefront Signs shall not have any moving parts. 
3. A series of windows that are separated by frames and supporting material of less than 

six inches in width shall be considered as a single window for the purpose of 
computation. 

4. Storefront Signs must be hung from some appurtenance of the tenant space and may 
not be taped or suction-cupped to the window, except if the advertisement is not related 
to the business’ primary functions and is equal or less than 8 ½ x 11 inches in size and 
laminated.  

Design guidelines for Building Signs shall be defined as follows: 



a. Signs are limited to trade names and logo (as identified in the lease). Listing of merchandise 
or descriptions of categories are not permitted. Signs may not include payment options or the 
terms “We Accept” in any form or variant.  

b. Iridescent and flashing signs, flashing lights, animated elements, formed plastic, injection 
molded plastic, and internally illuminated box signs are prohibited.  

c. Exposed raceways, exposed transformers, and visible sign company labels are not allowed. 
Transformers should not be visible and installed within a tenant’s frontage. Animated 
components, formed plastic, or non-durable signs are not allowed. All signage materials shall 
be UL-Rated. 

d. No sign maker’s labels or identifications may be visible on the exterior of the sign.  
e. No signs with a visible back are permitted and fasteners should be concealed. All supports and 

fasteners must be of a non-ferrous metal of a quality material and finish.  
f. Exposed neon is not permitted. 
g. All signs must include a seven-day, 24-hour clock to control illumination of storefronts.  
h. All signs must not be more than 12 inches in depth.  

Non-Internally Illuminated Individual Letter Signs 

a. Dimensional letter or graphics, pin-set or otherwise applied directly to the face of storefront 
area with external illumination. Signage types include metal, acrylic, or wood letters.  

b. Signs shall not be placed on background material. 
c. All signs must be lit with either a concealed fixture or as a design element i.e. decorative 

gooseneck fixture. 

Silhouette (Halo) Reverse Channel Lettering 

a. Background surfaces of the sign shall be opaque and not reflect the illumination of image of 
the neon lamps within the letters.  

b. All neon tubing must be fully concealed within the letter to not be visible to the public. 
c. The rear edge of the letter shall be approximately one inch from the background surface.  
d. Standoff brackets shall be mounted in the least visible location to support the letters.  
e. Standoff brackets and fasteners visible within the one-inch dimension between the background 

surface and the back of the letter shall be painted to match the background surface.  
f. P-K transformer housings shall be provided to feed the neon to each letter of the sign.  
g. Halo-type signs must have clear Lexan backing on the rear of the letters.  

In all instances, signs must not exceed three total colors, including white.  

Shopping Center Ground Sign 

Shopping center signs are subject to the approval of the Board of Trustees upon review by the Plan 
Commission. One shopping center ground sign may be allowed subject to the following:  

a. Shopping center ground signs shall be consistent in design and materials with wall signs. 
b. Shopping center ground signs shall be a maximum area of 100 square feet in area.  
c. Shopping center ground signs shall not exceed a maximum height of 8 feet except as allowed 

by paragraph e below.  



d. Shopping center ground signs shall be setback a minimum of 10 feet from all property lines 
except as required by paragraph e below;  

e. The height of shopping center ground signs may be increased up to 12 feet provided that the 
sign is setback an additional 3 feet for each 1 foot increase in height. For example, a 9 foot 
high sign would require a 13 foot setback from all property lines, a 10 foot high sign would 
require a 16 foot setback. 

Landscaping and Buffering 

Any element of the subject property which adjoins or is across the street from a Residential 
District, a fence or wall of architectural design approved by the Village and not less than five nor 
more than six feet in height, or a densely planted tree or shrub hedge, initially not less than five 
feet in height, shall be provided along the entire length of the property line which adjoins or is 
across the street from the Residential District. The proposed method of buffering shall be 
considered as part of the site plan review process herein set forth. The decision whether to require 
a wall, fence, trees, or shrub hedge shall be made by the Village based on site considerations.  

Hours of Operation for Business Uses 

a. The hours of operation for all uses within this Ordinance shall not exceed 7 A.M. to 10 P.M. 
on a permitted basis.  

b. Any use may request special use approval in accordance with the procedures and requirements 
outlined in the Zoning Ordinance to exceed these permitted hours.  

c. Any previously-approved special use shall be considered a use’s permitted hours of operation 
until and unless revisions are specifically made to this extent.  

Permitted and Special Uses 

Permitted Uses 

No building, structure, or land shall be used and no building or structure shall be erected, altered, 
or enlarged which is arranged, intended, or designed for other than any of the following uses: 

a. Antique shops  
b. Art stores, including galleries, custom art studios, art supplies, and related functions 
a. Bicycle sales, including rental and repair and service functions 
c. Book, stationery, card, and related gift shops 
d. Camera and photographic supply stores 
e. Carpet and rug stores with retail component 
f. China, glassware, and household goods stores 
b. Computer, business machine, and office equipment and supply stores  
g. Dry cleaning or laundry receiving establishment (with majority of cleaning done off-site) 
h. General apparel stores, including furriers, leather shops, jewelry stores with repair services, 

shoe stores with repair services, tailor and dressmaking shops, and clothing rental stores 
i. Financial services offices, including financial planning, real estate, or insurance offices 
j. Florists 



k. Food stores, including grocery stores, supermarkets, bakeries, health food stores, fruit and 
vegetable stores, delicatessens, butchers, bulk food stores, candy stores, and other similar 
establishments 

l. Furniture stores  
m. Home improvement stores, including hardware stores, interior decorating stores, 

locksmiths, and paint and wallpaper stores 
n. Hobby shops, including toy stores, coin/philatelic stores, and craft/fabric/sewing stores  
o. Home contracting sales and services, including homebuilders 
p. Household appliance and electronics stores including repair and service functions where 

incidental to retail sales 
q. Medical, dental, and optical offices and clinics without ambulance or emergency services  
r. Movie and video game stores, excluding movie theaters 
s. Music stores, including the sale of music-related items and the teaching of music skills 
t. Offices for use by government agencies, except those related to the services provided by 

the Secretary of State’s Vehicle Services Division  
u. Orthopedic and medical appliance stores 
v. Outdoor dining areas accessory to any permitted or special restaurant use subject to 

compliance with the regulations herein 
w. Personal improvement services, including health and fitness, barber shops and beauty and 

health services studio or instructional, and physical therapy offices, excluding fortune-
telling or psychic and tattoo or body piercing establishments 

x. Pharmacies and drug stores 
y. Photography and picture framing studios 
z. Post offices or business service stores without outdoor parking or storage 
aa. Restaurants under 4,000 square feet (including specialty restaurants such as donut shops 

and ice cream shops), with or without sales of alcoholic beverages 
bb. Studios for teaching of art, martial arts, music, dance, gymnastics, etc. 
cc. Sporting goods stores, excluding uses whose primary functions are related to gun and 

ammo sales and/or shooting ranges 
dd. Temporary outside sales display accessory to a permitted or special use  
ee. Travel agencies  
ff. Tutoring centers for pre-school, primary, and secondary education 
gg. Wine shops and services without any on-site consumption except for sampling 

Special Uses 

The following special uses may be permitted in specific situations in accordance with the 
procedures outlined in Section XIII of the Zoning Ordinance, as appropriate: 

a. Banks and financial institutions  
b. Banquet halls and catering establishments 
c. Child care centers and nursery schools 
d. Clubs or lodges, private, fraternal, or religious 
e. Drive through facilities accessory to a permitted or special use 



f. Dry cleaners with on-site equipment for dry cleaning 
g. Gun and ammo sales, including shooting ranges 
h. Hours of operation exceeding 7 A.M. to 10 P.M. for any permitted or special use 
i. Liquor stores 
j. Live entertainment and dancing accessory to any permitted or special use 
k. Professional massage services  
l. Offices related to the Secretary of State’s Vehicle Services Division  
m. Parking lots and structures where such uses are the principal use on a lot 
n. Pet shops and pet service stores, with or without overnight services 
o. Restaurants (including specialty restaurants such as donut shops and ice cream shops) over 

4,000 square feet with or without sales of alcoholic beverages. 
p. Tobacco shops 
q. Wine boutique with ancillary service of wine and beer by the glass and with service of pre-

packaged food for consumption on-site 

Outdoor Dining Area Regulations 

Restaurant outdoor dining areas shall be subject to the following:  

• Dining areas must be limited to the linear frontage of the principal business to which the 
outdoor area is intended to serve;  

• Dining areas shall be enclosed by an open fence of approved design preventing access to the 
outdoor dining area except by a doorway from the interior of the restaurant if table service is 
provided or alcohol served in the outdoor dining area;  

• Door to the dining area shall be self-closing;  
• Tables shall be cleaned promptly following use;  
• Furniture and umbrellas shall be weighted to prevent their movement in the wind;  
• Seating shall not exceed one chair for every 10 square feet devoted to outdoor dining and shall 

be counted in determining restroom and parking requirements;  
• No outdoor dining area shall be located so as to impede pedestrian traffic or proper access to 

and from the restaurant, defined as being within 48” of a curbline or so as to impede the normal 
flow of pedestrian traffic into or from a doorway;  

• Outdoor food preparation, storage or display is prohibited;  
• All furniture must be stored in the rear or off-site of the subject property when not in use; 
• Any and all outdoor dining areas must cease to be occupied not less than one-half hour prior 

to the closure of the principal business;  
• Outdoor music, performances, and other such entertainment is prohibited within outdoor 

dining areas, except when specifically exempted by one-time permit by the Village 
Administrator or their designee; 

• Approval of outdoor dining areas shall be subject to the Village’s adopted building codes; 
• Approval of outdoor dining areas may only be approved by the Village if they are also 

approved by the property owner; and 
• Outdoor dining areas must be cumulatively approved by the Village Administrator or their 

designee to determine final compliance with the regulations set forth herein. 



• Outdoor dining areas shall be included as part of the size calculation for restaurants.  

Parking Design Regulations 

The subject property shall provide one parking space for each 200 gross square feet of commercial 
space available.  

Every parking lot in excess of fifteen spaces shall contain planting islands for shade trees in 
compliance with the following standards: 

a. There shall be one island for every 15 parking spaces and one shade tree for each island.  
b. Each parking lot landscape island shall be a minimum of 9 feet wide and 18 feet in length. 
c. Required shade trees shall have a minimum 3 inch diameter measured two feet above ground 

level.  
d. Parking lot landscape islands generally shall be located at the ends of each row of parking (one 

double island to be located at the end of a double row of parking) and every 15 parking spaces 
within a row.  

e. Maintenance of Landscape Areas and Screening: All such landscaped areas and screening 
shall, once installed, be maintained in such manner as to retain at least the intended standards 
of the initial landscaping and to conform to the landscaping requirements of the Village. 

Minimum Standards for Parking Stalls and Aisles 

Angle of Parking 45 Degrees 60 Degrees  90 Degrees 
Width of Stall 9’ 9’ 9’ 
Stall Width (parallel 
to aisle) 

12’9” 10’5” 9’ 

Stall Depth (perp. to 
aisle) 

20’ 21’ 18’ 

Stall Length 19’ 19’ 18’ 
Aisle Width 13’* 17’* 24’ 
*One-way aisles only 
Parallel parking shall be permitted with stalls at least 24’ in length with an aisle of 14’ 
Accessible parking areas shall be designed in accordance with State requirements 

 
All open off-street loading berths, access drives, aisles, and maneuvering spaces shall be improved 
with an all-weather hard surface pavement including, at a minimum, a two inch (2") bituminous 
concrete surface course, with a twelve inch (12") minimum thickness aggregate base course, and 
six inch (6") high perimeter concrete curbing (Type B or Type B6:12) installed in accordance with 
Illinois Department of Transportation specifications. 

Parking and Loading Regulations 

The area immediately adjacent to the curbline shall be permitted to be used as a standing and 
loading zone, except no parking, standing, or loading areas shall be designated near the traffic 
intersection as shown in Exhibit C. It shall be unlawful for the driver of a vehicle to stand a 
passenger vehicle for a period of time longer than is necessary for the loading or unloading of 



passengers, groceries, or freight in any place along the curbline. It is prohibited to park a vehicle, 
whether occupied or not, along the curbline at the subject property. Parking or excessive 
standing/loading shall be defined as five (5) consecutive minutes. Signs shall be erected every 100 
feet along the curbline to this effect.  

All restaurant uses over 4,000 gross square feet must provide and continually operate a parking 
management plan, which shall include, at minimum, valet service to be present on Thursday-
Saturday evenings after 5:00pm. 

Employees at all businesses shall park behind the primary building (articulated in Exhibit B), 
except when cases when all legally permitted spaces behind the building are occupied.  

Parking of trucks in the open shall be prohibited. Trucks making deliveries to the business premises 
shall make deliveries only at loading docks where provided and, if there is no loading dock, such 
trucks may park only for such time as is necessary to complete the delivery. 



PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS RELATED TO THE  

SHOPPING CENTER AT 50-324 (EXCLUDING 150) BURR RIDGE PARKWAY 

The following regulations are intended to govern the current use, scope, as well as present and 
future conditions of the subject property at 50-324 (excluding 150) Burr Ridge Parkway, known 
at this time as “County Line Square Shopping Center”, as described in Exhibit A (Plat of Survey). 

Operation within Enclosed Buildings 

All business, service, storage, merchandise display, repair, and processing, where allowed, shall 
be conducted within a completely enclosed building, except as follows: 

a. Outdoor activities are permitted for uses which by definition require outdoor activities such as 
parking and loading areas, automobile service stations, or recreation areas for child care centers 
and nurseries.  

b. Outdoor activities listed as special uses may be approved by the Board of Trustees upon 
recommendation from the Plan Commission subject to the Zoning Ordinance. 

c. Temporary (less than or equal to 72 hours in total duration) outdoor activities may be permitted 
subject to written approval by the Village Administrator or their designee. Such activities shall 
not include any permanent improvements, buildings, or structures. Outdoor activities which 
may be permitted include festivals, tent sales, or seasonal sidewalk sales. 

Signs 

Building Signs located at the subject property are subject to the issuance of a sign permit by the 
Village. Building Signs are subject to the following regulations: 

a. Each tenant shall be permitted one Building Sign on the building façade.  
b. Each Building Sign shall not exceed one square foot for each lineal foot of the storefront or 

tenant space width with a minimum area allowed of 20 square feet and a maximum area 
allowed of 40 square feet. 

c. All tenants are permitted to affix Storefront/Window Signs, defined as any covering of the 
front window for advertisement purposes, without need for a sign permit and in adherence to 
the following regulations: 

1. The sum total of all Storefront Signs shall not exceed 30 percent of the total area of the 
windows in which they are located. 

2. Storefront Signs shall not have any moving parts. 
3. A series of windows that are separated by frames and supporting material of less than 

six inches in width shall be considered as a single window for the purpose of 
computation. 

4. Storefront Signs must be hung from some appurtenance of the tenant space and may 
not be taped or suction-cupped to the window, except if the advertisement is not related 
to the business’ primary functions and is equal or less than 8 ½ x 11 inches in size and 
laminated.  

Design guidelines for Building Signs shall be defined as follows: 



a. Signs are limited to trade names and logo (as identified in the lease). Listing of merchandise 
or descriptions of categories are not permitted. Signs may not include payment options or the 
terms “We Accept” in any form or variant.  

b. Iridescent and flashing signs, flashing lights, animated elements, formed plastic, injection 
molded plastic, and internally illuminated box signs are prohibited.  

c. Exposed raceways, exposed transformers, and visible sign company labels are not allowed. 
Transformers should not be visible and installed within a tenant’s frontage. Animated 
components, formed plastic, or non-durable signs are not allowed. All signage materials shall 
be UL-Rated. 

d. No sign maker’s labels or identifications may be visible on the exterior of the sign.  
e. No signs with a visible back are permitted and fasteners should be concealed. All supports and 

fasteners must be of a non-ferrous metal of a quality material and finish.  
f. Exposed neon is not permitted. 
g. All signs must include a seven-day, 24-hour clock to control illumination of storefronts.  
h. All signs must not be more than 12 inches in depth.  

Non-Internally Illuminated Individual Letter Signs 

a. Dimensional letter or graphics, pin-set or otherwise applied directly to the face of storefront 
area with external illumination. Signage types include metal, acrylic, or wood letters.  

b. Signs shall not be placed on background material. 
c. All signs must be lit with either a concealed fixture or as a design element i.e. decorative 

gooseneck fixture. 

Silhouette (Halo) Reverse Channel Lettering 

a. Background surfaces of the sign shall be opaque and not reflect the illumination of image of 
the neon lamps within the letters.  

b. All neon tubing must be fully concealed within the letter to not be visible to the public. 
c. The rear edge of the letter shall be approximately one inch from the background surface.  
d. Standoff brackets shall be mounted in the least visible location to support the letters.  
e. Standoff brackets and fasteners visible within the one-inch dimension between the background 

surface and the back of the letter shall be painted to match the background surface.  
f. P-K transformer housings shall be provided to feed the neon to each letter of the sign.  
g. Halo-type signs must have clear Lexan backing on the rear of the letters.  

In all instances, signs must not exceed three total colors, including white.  

Shopping Center Ground Sign 

Shopping center signs are subject to the approval of the Board of Trustees upon review by the Plan 
Commission. One shopping center ground sign may be allowed subject to the following:  

a. Shopping center ground signs shall be consistent in design and materials with wall signs. 
b. Shopping center ground signs shall be a maximum area of 100 square feet in area.  
c. Shopping center ground signs shall not exceed a maximum height of 8 feet except as allowed 

by paragraph e below.  



d. Shopping center ground signs shall be setback a minimum of 10 feet from all property lines 
except as required by paragraph e below;  

e. The height of shopping center ground signs may be increased up to 12 feet provided that the 
sign is setback an additional 3 feet for each 1 foot increase in height. For example, a 9 foot 
high sign would require a 13 foot setback from all property lines, a 10 foot high sign would 
require a 16 foot setback. 

Landscaping and Buffering 

Any element of the subject property which adjoins or is across the street from a Residential 
District, a fence or wall of architectural design approved by the Village and not less than five nor 
more than six feet in height, or a densely planted tree or shrub hedge, initially not less than five 
feet in height, shall be provided along the entire length of the property line which adjoins or is 
across the street from the Residential District. The proposed method of buffering shall be 
considered as part of the site plan review process herein set forth. The decision whether to require 
a wall, fence, trees, or shrub hedge shall be made by the Village based on site considerations.  

Hours of Operation for Business Uses 

a. The hours of operation for all uses within this Ordinance shall not exceed 7 A.M. to 10 P.M. 
on a permitted basis.  

b. Any use may request special use approval in accordance with the procedures and requirements 
outlined in the Zoning Ordinance to exceed these permitted hours.  

c. Any previously-approved special use shall be considered a use’s permitted hours of operation 
until and unless revisions are specifically made to this extent.  

Permitted and Special Uses 

Permitted Uses 

No building, structure, or land shall be used and no building or structure shall be erected, altered, 
or enlarged which is arranged, intended, or designed for other than any of the following uses: 

a. Antique shops with less than 7000 square feet of floor area 
b. Art stores, including galleries, custom art studios, art supplies, and related functions 
a. Bicycle sales, including rental and repair and service functions 
c. Book, stationery, card, and related gift shops 
d. Camera and photographic supply stores 
e. Carpet and rug stores with retail component 
f. China, glassware, and household goods stores 
b. Computer, business machine, and office equipment and supply stores  
g. Dry cleaning or laundry receiving establishment (with majority of cleaning done off-site) 
h. General apparel stores, including furriers, leather shops, jewelry stores with repair services, 

shoe stores with repair services, tailor and dressmaking shops, and clothing rental stores 
i. Financial services offices, including financial planning, real estate, or insurance offices 
j. Florists 

Commented [EW1]: Many existing uses were combined 
into a single use category. 

Commented [EW2]: Many existing uses were combined 
into a single use category.  



k. Food stores, including grocery stores, supermarkets, bakeries, health food stores, fruit and 
vegetable stores, delicatessens, butchers, bulk food stores, candy stores, and other similar 
establishments 

l. Furniture stores  
m. Home improvement stores, including hardware stores, interior decorating stores, 

locksmiths, and paint and wallpaper stores 
n. Hobby shops, including toy stores, coin/philatelic stores, and craft/fabric/sewing stores  
o. Home contracting sales and services, including homebuilders 
p. Household appliance and electronics stores including repair and service functions where 

incidental to retail sales 
q. Medical, dental, and optical offices and clinics without ambulance or emergency services  
r. Movie and video game stores, excluding movie theaters 
s. Music stores, including the sale of music-related items and the teaching of music skills 
t. Offices for use by government agencies, except those related to the services provided by 

the Secretary of State’s Vehicle Services Division  
u. Orthopedic and medical appliance stores 
v. Outdoor dining areas accessory to any permitted or special restaurant use subject to 

compliance with the regulations herein 
w. Personal improvement services, including health and fitness, barber shops and beauty and 

health services studio or instructional, and physical therapy offices, excluding fortune-
telling or psychic and tattoo or body piercing establishments 

x. Pharmacies and drug stores 
y. Photography studios 
z. Picture framing with retail component 
aa. Post offices or business service stores without outdoor parking or storage 
bb. Restaurants under 4,000 square feet (including specialty restaurants such as donut shops 

and ice cream shops), with or without sales of alcoholic beverages 
cc. Studios for teaching of art, martial arts, music, dance, gymnastics, etc. 
dd. Sporting goods stores with more than 7,000 square feet of floor area, excluding uses whose 

primary functions are related to gun and ammo sales and/or shooting ranges 
ee. Temporary outside sales display accessory to a permitted or special use  
ff. Travel agencies  
gg. Tutoring centers for pre-school, primary, and secondary education 
hh. Wine shops and services without any on-site consumption except for sampling 

Special Uses 

The following special uses may be permitted in specific situations in accordance with the 
procedures outlined in Section XIII of the Zoning Ordinance, as appropriate: 

a. Banks and financial institutions  
b. Banquet halls and catering establishments 
c. Child care centers and nursery schools 
d. Clubs or lodges, private, fraternal, or religious 

Commented [EW3]: Many existing uses were combined 
into a single use category. 

Commented [EW4]: Previously special uses 

Commented [EW5]: Previously special uses. 

Commented [EW6]: Previously special uses with defined 
regulations for compliance.  

Commented [EW7]: Many existing uses were combined 
into a single use category. Massage establishments deleted.  

Commented [EW8]: Revised permitted use.  

Commented [EW9]: Many existing uses were combined 
into a single use category. 

Commented [EW10]: Previously special uses. 



e. Drive through facilities accessory to a permitted or special use 
f. Dry cleaners with on-site equipment for dry cleaning 
g. Funeral parlors or crematoriums 
h. Gun and ammo sales, including shooting ranges 
i. Hours of operation exceeding 7 A.M. to 10 P.M. for any permitted or special use 
j. Laundromats 
k. Liquor stores 
l. Live entertainment and dancing accessory to any permitted or special use 
m. Offices related to the Secretary of State’s Vehicle Services Division  
n. Parking lots and structures where such uses are the principal use on a lot 
o. Pet shops and pet service stores, with or without overnight services 
p. Restaurants (including specialty restaurants such as donut shops and ice cream shops) over 

4,000 square feet with or without sales of alcoholic beverages. 
q. Theaters, performing arts, indoor only 
r. Tobacco shops 
s. Wine boutique with ancillary service of wine and beer by the glass and with service of pre-

packaged food for consumption on-site 

Outdoor Dining Area Regulations 

• Dining areas must be limited to the linear frontage of the principal business to which the 
outdoor area is intended to serve;  

• Dining areas shall be enclosed by an open fence of approved design preventing access to the 
outdoor dining area except by a doorway from the interior of the restaurant if table service is 
provided or alcohol served in the outdoor dining area;  

• Door to the dining area shall be self-closing;  
• Tables shall be cleaned promptly following use;  
• Furniture and umbrellas shall be weighted to prevent their movement in the wind;  
• Seating shall not exceed one chair for every 10 square feet devoted to outdoor dining and shall 

be counted in determining restroom and parking requirements;  
• No outdoor dining area shall be located so as to impede pedestrian traffic or proper access to 

and from the restaurant, defined as being within 48” of a curbline or so as to impede the normal 
flow of pedestrian traffic into or from a doorway;  

• Outdoor food preparation, storage or display is prohibited;  
• All furniture must be stored in the rear or off-site of the subject property when not in use; 
• Any and all outdoor dining areas must cease to be occupied not less than one-half hour prior 

to the closure of the principal business;  
• Outdoor music, performances, and other such entertainment is prohibited within outdoor 

dining areas, except when specifically exempted by one-time permit by the Village 
Administrator or their designee; 

• Approval of outdoor dining areas shall be subject to the Village’s adopted building codes; 
• Approval of outdoor dining areas may only be approved by the Village if they are also 

approved by the property owner; and 

Commented [EW11]: New stand-alone special use.  

Commented [EW12]: Revised special use. 



• Outdoor dining areas must be cumulatively approved by the Village Administrator or their 
designee to determine final compliance with the regulations set forth herein. 

• Outdoor dining areas shall be included as part of the size calculation for restaurants.  

Parking Design Regulations 

The subject property shall provide one parking space for each 200 gross square feet of commercial 
space available.  

Every parking lot in excess of fifteen spaces shall contain planting islands for shade trees in 
compliance with the following standards: 

a. There shall be one island for every 15 parking spaces and one shade tree for each island.  
b. Each parking lot landscape island shall be a minimum of 9 feet wide and 18 feet in length. 
c. Required shade trees shall have a minimum 3 inch diameter measured two feet above ground 

level.  
d. Parking lot landscape islands generally shall be located at the ends of each row of parking (one 

double island to be located at the end of a double row of parking) and every 15 parking spaces 
within a row.  

e. Maintenance of Landscape Areas and Screening: All such landscaped areas and screening 
shall, once installed, be maintained in such manner as to retain at least the intended standards 
of the initial landscaping and to conform to the landscaping requirements of the Village. 

Minimum Standards for Parking Stalls and Aisles 

Angle of Parking 45 Degrees 60 Degrees  90 Degrees 
Width of Stall 9’ 9’ 9’ 
Stall Width (parallel 
to aisle) 

12’9” 10’5” 9’ 

Stall Depth (perp. to 
aisle) 

20’ 21’ 18’ 

Stall Length 19’ 19’ 18’ 
Aisle Width 13’* 17’* 24’ 
*One-way aisles only 
Parallel parking shall be permitted with stalls at least 24’ in length with an aisle of 14’ 
Accessible parking areas shall be designed in accordance with State requirements 

 
All open off-street loading berths, access drives, aisles, and maneuvering spaces shall be improved 
with an all-weather hard surface pavement including, at a minimum, a two inch (2") bituminous 
concrete surface course, with a twelve inch (12") minimum thickness aggregate base course, and 
six inch (6") high perimeter concrete curbing (Type B or Type B6:12) installed in accordance with 
Illinois Department of Transportation specifications. 

Parking and Loading Regulations 

The area immediately adjacent to the curbline shall be permitted to be used as a standing and 
loading zone, except no parking, standing, or loading areas shall be designated near the traffic 



intersection as shown in Exhibit C. It shall be unlawful for the driver of a vehicle to stand a 
passenger vehicle for a period of time longer than is necessary for the loading or unloading of 
passengers, groceries, or freight in any place along the curbline. It is prohibited to park a vehicle, 
whether occupied or not, along the curbline at the subject property. Parking or excessive 
standing/loading shall be defined as five (5) consecutive minutes. Signs shall be erected every 100 
feet along the curbline to this effect.  

All restaurant uses over 4,000 gross square feet must provide and continually operate a parking 
management plan, which shall include, at minimum, valet service to be present on Thursday-
Saturday evenings after 5:00pm.  

Employees at all businesses shall park behind the primary building (articulated in Exhibit B), 
except when cases when all legally permitted spaces behind the building are occupied.  

Parking of trucks in the open shall be prohibited. Trucks making deliveries to the business premises 
shall make deliveries only at loading docks where provided and, if there is no loading dock, such 
trucks may park only for such time as is necessary to complete the delivery. 



ewalter
Exhibit A



S?,?^???*H| i )TE£HTS;.*-Jiy**~." h— -
?L"r=s.'ua^'i^^n-K"s? E°?^miiFD"ss'.'u—ssvs.:

5S3srS|5Si2S5=SS:i=s:SS'iE
N i%£^SSS-.B"ta=B.-.c™=.".a rtm^psS^i^L^S^S'J) ^ ^^3^^F£S3

^•^sss^^gj^iss
£sS^£SssSsSi'S=SSsSsSS-5S

^-
'^^M^^ii^ls^B

sutes-
=SS2?5S^^-^=SS;iS£;^???^??K a.

vssy^-"^^^ !§uRSE33
-iiamiil!

ewalter
Exhibit B



:f
^

^
 :

y
~

'w
'^

-^
'T

^
~

\
 .

 t
tl

s
i 

J
^

l

iij
gg

iiu
ig

iji
iB

!

ewalter
Exhibit C



 
 

 

 
VILLAGE OF BURR RIDGE 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 

 
TO:  Village of Burr Ridge Plan Commission 
  Greg Trzupek, Chairman 
 
FROM: Evan Walter – Village Administrator 
 
DATE: October 4, 2021 
 
RE:  Board Report 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

At its September 27 meetings, the Board of Trustees took the following actions relative to matters 
forwarded from the Plan Commission.  

Z-11-2021:  Zoning Ordinance Amendments (Village of Burr Ridge); The Board directed 
staff to prepare an ordinance approving the amendments to the Zoning Ordinance regarding noise 
performance standards.  
 
Direction: The Board directed the Plan Commission to hold a public hearing to consider a 
land use moratorium in the Downtown Business District.  
 



 

 
VILLAGE OF BURR RIDGE 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 

 
TO:  Village of Burr Ridge Plan Commission 
  Greg Trzupek, Chairman 
   
FROM: Evan Walter – Village Administrator 
 
DATE: October 4, 2021 
 
RE: PC-04-2021: 6100 Grant Street; Preliminary Plat of Subdivision (Bak)   
 
Please find attached a preliminary plat of subdivision for the Bak subdivision at 6100 Grant Street. 
This property is located immediately east of the subject property in V-04-2021 and was one of the 
newly-created parcels that was produced in the recent Grant Street subdivision. The preliminary 
plat of subdivision is an approval process that the Village requires to ensure that lot lines are set 
in place before any engineering reviews occur.  
 
The proposed subdivision proposes to create two lots from a single property, with one property 
having access along Keller Drive and another along Grant Street. The current property is zoned R-
3 Residential; the Zoning Ordinance states that all properties in this Zoning District must be at 
least 20,000 square feet in size with 100 feet of linear street frontage. Both of the new lots comply 
with these requirements. Therefore, staff recommends that the Plan Commission recommend that 
the Board approve a preliminary plat of subdivision at 6100 Grant as shown in Exhibit A.  
 
 
 
 



ewalter
Exhibit A


	III. PUBLIC HEARINGS
	V-04-2021 Staff Report #3.pdf
	/
	HEARING:October 4, 2021; continued from September 16, 2021 and August 2, 2021TO:Plan CommissionGreg Trzupek, ChairmanFROM: Evan WalterVillage AdministratorPETITIONER: Judith TolandPETITIONER STATUS: Prospective Property OwnerEXISTING ZONING: R-3 ResidentialLAND USE PLAN: Recommends Single-Family Residential UsesEXISTING LAND USE: Single-Family ResidenceSITE AREA: 0.51 AcresSUBDIVISION: Grant Street 
	/

	_Toland res design 9-27-21.pdf
	first floor
	second floor
	bsmt
	Toland site plan

	Z-08-2021 Staff Report #4.pdf
	 /
	HEARING:October 4, 2021; continued from September 20, 2021, August 16, 2021 and July 19, 2021TO:Plan CommissionGreg Trzupek, ChairmanFROM: Evan WalterVillage AdministratorPETITIONER:Village of Burr RidgePROPERTY OWNER:Robert Garber d/b/a Reegs PropertiesEXISTING ZONING:B-1 Business DistrictLAND USE PLAN:Recommends Commercial UsesEXISTING LAND USE:Commercial BuildingsSITE AREA:7.2 Acres SUBDIVISION:County Line SquareAVAILABLE PARKING:499 Total Spaces 
	/




